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Sappony Church is a rectangular frame building, ome story high and three bays long, -

covered with beaded weatherboards and entered through the west gable eand. Origirmally
constructed in 1725-26, a vestry room was added early in the nineteenth century; the

building was remodeled in the mid-nineteenth century and again in 1870 following the

ccllapse of a balcony and the plaster ceiling at the end of a service. Nevertheless,
a significant amount of early fabric survives.

All of the windows have large nine-over-nine sash with most of their original glass,
and some retain their early frames with beaded sills. The low gable roof, with its
deep pediment and dentil cornice at the west end, is probably a prodict of the mid-
nineteenth century alteration, but the flush boards in the tympanum of the pediment
are reused old materials. Also dating from the mid-nineteenth century is the entrance
doorway with its ramped lintel and two-panel applied-mold double doors.

At the-east end is a vestry room with a two=-panel, vertical-panel Greek Revival door.
The room, with its low hipped roof and dentil cornice, was built early in the nineteenth
century, with the door and a plain frieze added in the mid-century renovatiom, The
shallow chancel with its triple window was added still later in the nineteenth century.

The interior of the church is a single, plain rectangular room with a flat matchboard
ceiling and a broad, flat arch leading to the chancel. Most of the church furniture

has been remodelled or rearranged, but the fabric is original. Raised-panel wainscoting
encircles the walls, and raised-panel box pews have been converted to slip pews with
extra pieces used to build the matching pulpit and reading desk and the Gothic-pedimented
bishop's chair which, with an early trestle communion table, occupies the chancel. The
altar area is set off from the body of the church by an early balustrade whose balusters
have been cut down, and another piece of the same balustrade, this unaltered, sets off
the chancel.

To the right {south) of the alter area, set into the wainscoting, are the headstones
of Devereux Jarratt and his wife Martha, signed "Davidson, Fecit Petersburg," and in
the center of this corner area, also brought to the church with Jarratt's remains, is
a marble obelisk inscribed "Erected to the memory of Rev. D, Jarratt and wife as a
testimonial of the respect and reverance of a succeeding generation 18538."

The early nineteenth-century vestry room, which is entered from the sanctuary through

a doorway with an early two-panel, raised-panel door, retains its original flush
wainscoting (with original paint visible insid= a corner closet) and 2arly four-over-four
sash.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Sappony Church in rural Dinwiddie County is significant primarily for its association
with Devereux Jarratt, its rector from the 1760s until his death in the opening years

of the nineteenth century. An ardent supporter of the American Revolution, Jarratt was
also a renowned proponent of the Methodist movement within the Anglican/Episcopal church,
His remains and those of his wife lie buried beneath the building.

Sappony Church was built in 1725-26 as one of two chapels of Bristol Parish. William
Byrd 11 visited the new building twice during his exploratory travels, as he recounted
in his History of the Dividing Line (1728) and Journey to the Land of Eden (1733). 1In
1742, the chapel was set off as the parish church of the newly organized Bath Parish,

The third rector of Bath Parish, after a Mr. Pow and the Rev. James Pasteur, was Devereux
Jarratt, who assumed the office in 1763, Jarratt was one of the few Anglican clerics

to be affected by the Great Awakening, which led him to decry the friveolity and "civil
nirth' of Virginians. At the time, he recounted, "I stood alone, not knowing of one
/Angl:.c:an/ clergyman in Virginia like-minded w1th myself."

" -An admirer of New England's famous preacher, revivalist and theologian Jonathan Edwards,
Jarratt himself had a reputation as a vivid and moving orator and experienced several
revivals of religion within his church in the years following 1765, events which he
described in his Brief Narrative of the Revival of Religion in Virginia (1778). His
revivalist sympathies led him to encourage the Methodist movement in his area. Always
careful never to offend Anglican sensibilities by holding Methodist meetings in his
church building, he nevertheless extended to them the use of his barn. In addition to
being a comforting sign of the rise of experimental religion within the church, the
Methodists were in Jarratt's eyes a valuable aid in combatting the progress of Bapcists
and other dissenters in Virginia.

When Jarratt died in 18(i, his funeral was conducted at the church by Francis Asbury,
the pioneering Methodist circuit rider. Jarratt was succeeded by Wright Tucker in

1801 and John Grammar in 1827, but Sappony Church continued to be known as "Old Father
Jarvatt's Church." 1In 1869, his remains were transferved from their burial place at
Diamond Hill in Amelia County to Sappony Church. It was at the end of the memorial
service, according to legend, that the building collapsed. However, the testimony of
one member of the congregation was that only a gallery and the ceiling gave way. Archi-
tectural evidence, in particular the survival of so much early fabric including the
.sash with their original glass, lends support to the witness' argument.

Sappony Church continues to house a small but active Episcopal congregation.
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